The Limestone County Commission met in a regular meeting today, at 10:00 a.m. at the Clinton Street Courthouse Annex, 100 South Clinton Street, Athens, Alabama.

Present: Stanley Hill, Steve Turner, Jason Black, and Ben Harrison. Absent: None. Mark Yarbrough, Chairman presided.

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

MOTION was made by Stanley Hill and seconded by Jason Black to approve the minutes of November 20 & 29, 2017.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Stanley Hill, aye; Jason Black, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Steve Turner to approve the following claims

11/17/17	Check # 45866 - 45950	\$1,037,187.49
11/22/17	Check # 45951 - 46003	\$ 310,404.44
11/30/17	Check # 46004 - 46007	Void
11/30/17	Check # 46008 - 46091	\$1,024,745.37
	TOTAL	\$2,372,337.30

with detailed claims of the above being on file for review upon request to the County Administrator.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Steve Turner, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Stanley Hill and seconded by Ben Harrison to authorize the Chairman to execute the following agreements for relocation of utility facilities on public right-of-way to replace existing bridge on Liberty Way over Little Limestone Creek:

- Ardmore Telephone Company \$2,603.10
- Limestone County Water & Sewer Authority \$35,441.74
- Athens Electric Department \$3,359.01

REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT FOR RELOCATION OF UTILITY FACILITIES ON PRIVATE OR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

	PROJECT NUMBER	ACBRZ61861-ATRP(017)
□ Private Right-of-Way	ATRIP NUMBER	42-05-23
☑ Public Right-of-Way	County	Limestone

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the County of LIMESTONE acting by and through its County Commission, hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY, and Ardmore Telephone Company, hereinafter referred to as the UTILITY.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the COUNTY proposes a project of certain highway improvements in LIMESTONE County, Alabama, said project being designated as Project No. <u>ACBRZ61861-ATRP(017)</u> and consisting approximately of the following:

replace existing bridge on Liberty Way over Little Limestone Creek; and

WHEREAS, the UTILITY is the owner of certain facilities located on private or public right-of-way, as applicable, at places where they will interfere with the construction of said project unless said facilities are relocated; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has determined that the relocation of the facilities hereinafter referred to is necessitated by the construction of said project and has requested or ordered, as applicable, the UTILITY to relocate same; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation will use Federal funds allocated to the County, if available, that are provided to it by the Federal Highway Administration pursuant to 23 CFR 645 to reimburse the County's expenses incurred in adjusting the utilities facilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. The UTILITY will relocate its facilities presently located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project in accordance with the UTILITY'S plans and specifications as approved by the COUNTY, so as to occasion the least possible interference with the progress of the project. The UTILITY'S plans, specifications and estimate of relocation cost are transmitted herewith and made a part hereof by reference.
- 2. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the latest edition of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation Utility Manual, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such Utility Manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.
- 3. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the Federal Highway Administration Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), latest edition, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.
- 4. By signing this contract, the COUNTY and UTILITY affirm, for the duration of the agreement, that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom.
- 5. Code of Federal Regulations 23 CFR 645 is hereby made a part hereof by reference and will be conformed to by the UTILITY as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto.
- 6. The UTILITY will observe and comply with the provisions of all Federal, State and Municipal laws and regulations as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto in the performance of work hereunder, including the Clean Water Act of 1987, the Alabama Nonpoint Source Management Program of 1989, and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM). The UTILITY will procure and pay for all licenses and permits that are necessary for its performance of the work.

- 7. The UTILITY will perform the work of relocation:
 - (a) **E** by UTILITY'S own forces
 - (b) □ by contract let by the UTILITY
 - (c) \square by an existing written continuing contract where the work is regularly performed for the UTILITY
 - (d) \square by combination of the preceding (as shown in detail on the estimate).
- 8. The detailed relocation cost estimate will be itemized and attached to this agreement. With respect to facilities located on the UTILITY'S private right-of-way, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for the actual cost of relocation, as may be adjusted below. With respect to facilities located on public right-of-way, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for all or part of the actual cost of relocation as required by the laws of Alabama, as may be adjusted below.
 - a. The STATE'S share of the engineering charges shall be limited to the "in-kind" work only.
- b. The total actual cost of relocation, whether the facilities are on private or public right-of-way, shall be adjusted for betterment, if any, as defined and provided for in 23 CFR 645 above noted. Excluding betterment costs, the total estimated cost of relocation, is $\frac{$2,603.10}{$1,325,00}$ The total estimated cost including betterment is $\frac{$7,325,00}{$1,325,00}$
- c. If an adjustment for betterment is applicable, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for 35.54 percent of the actual cost of relocation and the remaining 64.46 percent thereof shall be for the account of the UTILITY for betterment. If there are changes during construction and/or the actual construction cost percentage becomes substantially different from the construction estimate, the COUNTY reserves the right to recalculate the percentages at any time.
- 9. The UTILITY will keep accurate and true records of all expenditures made by it in the process of such relocation. Records will be kept in accordance with 23 CFR 645 above noted, or in accordance with Part 30 and 31, Federal Acquisition Regulations, or in accordance with accounting practices acceptable to the STATE.
- 10. The UTILITY will, during the progress of the work and for three years from the date final payment is made, make its records available during normal working hours for examination and audit by representatives of the STATE and of the Federal Highway Administration to verify amounts and items covered in the reimbursement for relocation of facilities covered herein. Said records will be available for examination at

Ardmore Telephone Company 30190 Ardmore Ave. Ardmore, AL 35739

- The UTILITY will, within six (6) months following completion of the relocation, furnish the COUNTY such papers, records, supporting documents and invoices as may be required by the State showing the cost of said relocation. The UTILITY will furnish the COUNTY a copy of its "as built" plans for the STATE'S records.
- 12. Upon receipt of such documents and accounts as may be required by the preceding paragraph and upon completion and acceptance of such verification as the COUNTY may deem necessary, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for the actual cost of such relocation as verified by the COUNTY. In the event the actual verified cost, as accepted, exceeds the estimated cost, the COUNTY may require a Supplemental Agreement to be executed between the parties prior to reimbursement of any amount in excess of the estimated cost.
- 13. Paragraphs numbered 13 through 17 set forth below are applicable to this Agreement only if some or all of the UTILITY facilities to be relocated hereunder are located on private right-of-way of the UTILITY; otherwise, such paragraphs are considered inapplicable to this Agreement and null and void.

- 14. Where the UTILITY has a compensable property interest in its existing location (herein referred to as private right-of-way) by reason of holding the fee, an easement or other property interest, evidence of such compensable property interest will be submitted to the COUNTY by the UTILITY for review and approval.
- 15. If the UTILITY is required to move all of its facilities from a portion of its private right-of-way, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the UTILITY will convey to the COUNTY by Quitclaim Deed the portion of its private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- 16. In the event the UTILITY is not required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right-of-way, the following provisions shall apply:
- a. To the extent the UTILITY has the right to so agree the COUNTY will have the right to construct, operate and maintain a highway over and along the portion of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- b. The subordination of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way to the right of the COUNTY to construct, operate, and maintain said highway will be effective and operative only to such air, surface and subsurface rights as may reasonably be required and are necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of said highway, and to enable the COUNTY to control access to the highway where such control is established; otherwise this subordination agreement will in no wise affect and impair the rights of the UTILITY, its successors and assigns, in or to its private right-of-way, including but not limited to the right to install additional facilities over, under and across the highway; provided, however, that any installation of additional facilities will be subject to the STATE'S responsibility and right to make prior determination that any such additional facilities are located so as not to impair the highway or any planned highway improvement and so as not to interfere with the free and safe flow of traffic thereon.
- c. It is mutually understood that the terms of this Agreement do not subordinate, affect or impair the rights of the UTILITY for reimbursement of the cost of such future relocation as may be required and necessitated by highway construction at some future date, as fully as if no subordination existed; however, such relocation will be in accordance with an additional agreement to be entered into at that time between the UTILITY and the COUNTY.
- 17. If the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right- of-way to a new location on the same private right-of-way, the following provisions shall apply:
- a. To the extent the UTILITY has the right to so agree, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the COUNTY will have the right to construct, operate and maintain a highway over and along the portion of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- b. The subordination of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way to the right of the COUNTY to construct, operate and maintain said highway will be effective and operative only to such air, surface and subsurface rights as may reasonably be required and are necessary for the construction, operation and maintenance of said highway, and to enable the COUNTY to control access to the highway where such control is established; otherwise this subordination agreement will in no wise affect and impair the rights of the UTILITY, its successors and assigns, in or to its private right-of-way, including but not limited to the right to install additional facilities over, under and across the highway; provided, however, that any installation of additional facilities will be subject to the COUNTY'S responsibility and right to make prior determination that any such additional facilities are located so as not to impair the highway or any planned highway improvement and so as not to interfere with the free and safe flow of traffic thereon.
- c. it is mutually understood that the terms of this Agreement do not subordinate, affect or impair the rights of the UTILITY for reimbursement of the cost of such future relocation as may be required and necessitated by highway construction at some future date, as fully as if no subordination existed; however, such relocation will be in accordance with an additional agreement to be entered into at that time between the UTILITY and the COUNTY.

- 18. If the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right- of-way to a new location on public right-of-way or if any such facilities are to be retained in place within the public right-of-way due to this project, the following provisions will apply:
- a. The cost of relocation will include reimbursement for acquisition of right-of-way by the UTILITY to place necessary guy wires and anchors on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way and the rights to cut, trim and remove, initially and from time to time as necessary, trees on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way which might then or thereafter endanger the facilities of the UTILITY.
- b. Reimbursement for future relocation of the UTILITY'S facilities will be in accordance with State laws in effect at the time such relocation is made; provided, however, the UTILITY will be reimbursed for the cost of any future relocation of the facilities, including the cost of acquisition of equivalent private right-of- way if such future relocation is outside the highway right-of-way and such relocation is required by the COUNTY, and provided that the prior relocation from private right-of-way to public right-of-way was without compensation to the UTILITY for its compensable property interest in its private right-of-way.
- 19. The UTILITY will be obligated for the payment of damages occasioned to private property, public utilities or the general public, caused by the legal liability (in accordance with Alabama and/or Federal law) of the UTILITY, its agents, servants, employees or facilities.
- 20. The UTILITY will have a copy of this Agreement on the project site at all times while work is being performed under this Agreement.
- 21. Nothing contained in this Agreement, or in its execution, shall be construed to alter or affect the title of the COUNTY to the public right-of-way nor to increase, decrease or modify in any way the rights of the UTILITY provided by law with respect to the construction, operation or maintenance of its facilities on the public right-of-way.
- 22. Paragraph 22 set forth below is applicable to this Agreement only if Federal appropriated funds are available or will be available in the project by which the relocation required by this Agreement is necessitated.
- 23. In the event any Federal Funds arc utilized for this work, the following certification is made:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instruction
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file 6the required certification shall be subject to civil penalty' of not less than 510,000 and not more than 5100,000 for each such failure.

24. In accordance with Title 23, U.S.C. Sec 313, Buy America, steel and iron materials and products used on this utility relocation shall comply with the Buy America requirements of 23 CFR 635.410. Minor items of foreign steel may be used if their cost is less than 52,500 or one-tenth of one percent of the agreement amount, whichever is greater. Eligibility for reimbursement is subject to audit for compliance with the Buy America Requirement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers, officials or persons thereunto duly authorized, and this agreement is deemed to be dated and to be effective on the dale hereinafter stated as the date of its approval by the Innovative Programs Engineer.

ARDMORE TELEPHONE COMPANY

RELOCATION OF CABLE AT LIBERTY WAY BRIDGE PROJECT

TOTAL CABLE (25X22) 354 FEET @ \$1.76 A FOOT =	\$ 389.40
TOTAL 80RING 181 FEET @ \$7.50 A FOOT =	\$1357.50
PULLING CABLE IN CONDUIT 181FEET @ .80 CENTS =	\$ 144.80
TOTAL PLOWING 173 FEET @ \$1.80=	\$ 311.40
SPLICING CABLE =	\$ 200.00
Demolition of existing cable =	\$ 200.00
TOTAL COST =	\$2603.10

REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT FOR RELOCATION OF UTILITY FACILITIES ON PRIVATE OR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY WORK TO BE DONE BY STATE CONTRACTOR

□ Private Right-of-Way	ATRIP NUMBER	ACBRZ61861-ATRP(017)
☑ Public Right-of-Way	County	Limestone

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the County of <u>LIMESTONE</u> acting by and through its County Commission, hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY, and <u>LIMESTONE</u> COUNTY <u>WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY</u>, hereinafter referred to as the UTILITY.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the COUNTY proposes a project of certain highway improvements in <u>LIMESTONE</u> County, Alabama, said project being designated as Project No. <u>ACBRZ61861-ATRP(017)</u> and consisting approximately of the following:

replace existing bridge on Liberty Way over Little Limestone Creek; and

WHEREAS, the UTILITY is the owner of certain facilities located on private or public right-of-way, as applicable, at places where they will interfere with the construction of said project unless said facilities are relocated; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has determined that the relocation of the facilities hereinafter referred to is necessitated by the construction of said project and has requested or ordered, as applicable, the UTILITY to relocate same; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation will use Federal funds allocated to the County, if available, that are provided to it by the Federal Highway Administration pursuant to 23 CFR 645 to reimburse the County's expenses incurred in adjusting the utilities facilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. The UTILITY, not being staffed or equipped to perform the relocation, requests that the relocation work be included in the Alabama Department of Transportation's Highway Construction Contract. The relocation of the facilities will be accomplished in accordance with and as shown by the UTILITY'S reproducible mylar plans, specifications, and estimate transmitted herewith and made a part hereof by reference. The estimated cost of the "In- Kind" relocation is \$35,441,74.
- a. The actual cost of relocation will not be reimbursed to the UTILITY but will be paid directly to the STATE'S contractor by the STATE as a part of its contract. A detailed itemized cost estimate will be transmitted herewith and made a part hereof by reference.
- b. The total actual cost of relocation, whether the facilities are on private or public right-of-way, shall be adjusted for betterment, if any, as defined and provided for in 23 CFR 645 above noted. Excluding betterment costs, the total estimated cost of relocation is \$35,441.74.

 The total estimated cost including betterment is \$35,441.74.
- If an adjustment for betterment is applicable, the COUNTY shall reimburse the UTILITY based on the percentage ratio of "inkind" cost and "betterment" cost and being 100.00 percent of the total actual cost of relocation, as "inkind" and the remaining 0.00 percent thereof shall be for the account of the UTILITY for betterment. If there are changes during construction and/or the actual construction cost percentage becomes substantially different from the construction estimate, the COUNTY reserves the right to recalculate the percentages at any time.
- 2. The UTILITY will confirm to the provisions of the latest edition of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation Utility Manual, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such Utility Manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.
- 3. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the Federal Highway Administration Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), latest edition, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.
- 4. The UTILITY will be notified by the COUNTY Project Engineer, twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the commencement of the facility adjustment by the STATE Contractor. The COUNTY Project Engineer shall have final authority in all matters affecting the work of the STATE'S Contractor. In the event the UTILITY has an Inspector on the project, such Inspector will not issue any instructions to the STATE'S Contractor. All instructions to the STATE'S Contractor with regard to the work provided for under this agreement will be issued by the COUNTY Project Engineer, after consultation with the UTILITY Inspector or Representative if found necessary by the COUNTY Project Engineer.

- 5. Code of Federal Regulations 23 CFR 645 is hereby made a part hereof by reference and will be conformed to by the UTILITY as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto.
- 6. By signing this contract, the COUNTY and UTILITY affirm, for the duration of the agreement, that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom.
- 7. The UTILITY will observe and comply with the provisions of all Federal, State and Municipal laws and regulations as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto in the performance of work hereunder, including the Clean Water Act of 1987, the Alabama Nonpoint Source Management Program of 1989, and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM). The UTILITY will procure and pay for all licenses and permits that are necessary for its performance of the work.
- 8. Where the UTILITY has a compensable property interest in its existing location (herein referred to as private right-of-way) by reason of holding the fee, an easement or other property interest, evidence of such compensable property interest shall be attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement.
- 9. If the UTILITY is required to move all of its facilities from a portion of its private right-of-way, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the UTILITY will convey to the COUNTY by Quitclaim Deed the portion of its private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- 10. In the event the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right-of-way to a new location on public right-of-way or if any such facilities are to be retained in place within the public right-of-way due to this project, the following provisions will apply:
- a. The cost of relocation will include reimbursement for acquisition of right-of-way by the UTILITY to place necessary guy wires and anchors on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way and the rights to cut, trim and remove, initially and from time to time as necessary, trees on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way which might then or thereafter endanger the facilities of the UTILITY.
- b. Reimbursement for future relocation of the UTILITY'S facilities will be in accordance with State law in effect at the time such relocation is made; provided, however, the UTILITY will be reimbursed for the cost of any future relocation of the facilities, including the cost of acquisition of equivalent private right-of-way if such future relocation is outside the highway right-of-way and such relocation is required by the COUNTY, and provided that the prior relocation from private right-of-way to public right-of-way was without compensation to the UTILITY for its compensable property interest in its private right-of-way.
- 11. The UTILITY will be obligated for the payment of damages occasioned to private property, public utilities or the general public, caused by the legal liability (in accordance with Alabama and/or Federal law) of the UTILITY, its agents, servants, employees or facilities.
- 12. Nothing contained in this Agreement, or in its execution, shall be construed to alter or affect the title of the COUNTY to the public right-of-way nor to increase, decrease or modify in any way the rights of the UTILITY provided by law with respect to the construction, operation or maintenance of its facilities on the public right-of-way.
- 13. Paragraph 13 set forth below is applicable to this Agreement only if Federal appropriated funds are available or will be available in the project by which the relocation required by this Agreement is necessitated.
- 14. In the event any Federal Funds are utilized for this work, the following certification is made: The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
 - (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of

the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers, officials or persons thereunto duly authorized, and this agreement is deemed to be dated and to be effective on the date hereinafter stated as the date of its approval by the Innovative Programs Engineer.

Item	Amount	Price per	Price \$7,279.20	
3" Ductile Iron Pipe	216 ft	\$33.70		
3"MJ Tee	2	\$49.71	\$99.42	
3" MJ 90 Elbows	4	\$47.50	\$190.00	
3" DI Grip Ring Packs	20	\$41.93	\$838.60	
Bridge Rollers	284.69	\$8.00	\$2,277.52	
	Freight for rollers		\$35.00	
Labor + Materials Total			\$35,441.74	

REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT FOR RELOCATION OF UTILITY FACILITIES ON PRIVATE OR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

DDOLECT NUMBER ACRESCACES ATER/OST

		PROJECT NOMBER	ACBRZ61861-ATRP(U17)
	Private Right-of-Way	ATRIP NUMBER	42-05-23
X	Public Right-of-Way	County	Limestone

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the County of LIMESTONE acting by and through its County Commission, hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY, and Athens electric Department, hereinafter referred to as the UTILITY.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the COUNTY proposes a project of certain highway improvements in <u>LIMESTONE</u> County, Alabama, said project being designated as Project No. <u>ACBRZ61861-ATRP(017)</u> and consisting approximately of the following:

replace existing bridge on Liberty Way over Little Limestone Creek; and

WHEREAS, the UTILITY is the owner of certain facilities located on private or public right-of-way, as applicable, at places where they will interfere with the construction of said project unless said facilities are relocated; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has determined that the relocation of the facilities hereinafter referred to is necessitated by the construction of said project and has requested or ordered, as applicable, the UTILITY to relocate same; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation will use Federal limds allocated to the County, if available, that are provided to it by the Federal Highway Administration pursuant to 23 CFR 645 to reimburse the County's expenses incurred in adjusting the utilities facilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. The UTILITY will relocate its facilities presently located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project in accordance with the UTILITY'S plans and specifications as approved by the COUNTY, so as to occasion the least possible interference with the progress of the project. The UTILITY'S plans, specifications and estimate of relocation cost are transmitted herewith and made a part hereof by reference.
- 2. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the latest edition of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation Utility Manual, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such Utility Manual is of record within die Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.
- 3. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the Federal Highway Administration Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), latest edition, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.
- 4. By signing this contract, the COUNTY and UTILITY affirm, for the duration of the agreement, that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within die State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom.
- 5. Code of Federal Regulations 23 CFR 645 is hereby made a part hereof by reference and will be conformed to by the UTILITY as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto.
- 6. The UTILITY will observe and comply with the provisions of all Federal, State and Municipal laws and regulations as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto in the performance of work hereunder, including the Clean Water Act of 1987, the Alabama Nonpoint Source Management Program of 1989, and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM). The UTILITY will procure and pay for all licenses and permits that are necessary for its performance of the work.

- 7. The UTILITY will perform the work of relocation:
 - (a) **I** by UTILITY'S own forces
 - (b) □ by contract let by the UTILITY
 - (c) \square by an existing written continuing contract where the work is regularly performed for the UTILITY
 - (d) \square by combination of the preceding (as shown in detail on the estimate).
- 8. The detailed relocation cost estimate will be itemized and attached to this agreement. With respect to facilities located on the UTILITY'S private right-of-way, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for the actual cost of relocation, as may be adjusted below. With respect to facilities located on public right-of-way, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for all or part of the actual cost of relocation as required by the laws of Alabama, as may be adjusted below.
 - a. The STATE'S share of the engineering charges shall be limited to the "in-kind" work only.
- b. The total actual cost of relocation, whether the facilities are on private or public right-of-way, shall be adjusted for betterment, if any, as defined and provided for in 23 CFR 645 above noted. Excluding betterment costs, the total estimated cost of relocation, is \$3,359.01 The total estimated cost including betterment is \$3,359.01
- c. If an adjustment for betterment is applicable, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for $\underline{100.00}$ percent of the actual cost of relocation and the remaining $\underline{0-00}$ percent thereof shall be for the account of the UTILITY for betterment. If there are changes during construction and/or the actual construction cost percentage becomes substantially different from the construction estimate, the COUNTY reserves the right to recalculate the percentages at any time.
- 9. The UTILITY will keep accurate and true records of all expenditures made by it in the process of such relocation. Records will be kept in accordance with 23 CFR 645 above noted, or in accordance with Part 30 and 31, Federal Acquisition Regulations, or in accordance with accounting practices acceptable to the STATE.
- 10. The UTILITY will, during the progress of the work and for three years from the date final payment is made, make its records available during normal working hours for examination and audit by representatives of the STATE and of the Federal Highway Administration to verify amounts and items covered in the reimbursement for relocation of facilities covered herein. Said records will be available for examination at

Athens Electric Department 1806 Wilkinson St. Athens, AL 35611

- The UTILITY will, within six (6) months following completion of the relocation, furnish the COUNTY such papers, records, supporting documents and invoices as may be required by the State showing the cost of said relocation. The UTILITY will furnish the COUNTY a copy of its "as built" plans for the STATE'S records.
- Upon receipt of such documents and accounts as may be required by the preceding paragraph and upon completion and acceptance of such verification as the COUNTY may deem necessary, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for the actual cost of such relocation as verified by the COUNTY. In the event the actual verified cost, as accepted, exceeds die estimated cost, the COUNTY may require a Supplemental Agreement to be executed between the parties prior to reimbursement of any amount in excess of the estimated cost.
- Paragraphs numbered 13 through 17 set forth below are applicable to this Agreement only if some or all of the UTILITY facilities to be relocated hereunder are located on private right-of-way of the UTILITY; otherwise, such paragraphs are considered inapplicable to this Agreement and null and void.

- 14. Where the UTILITY has a compensable property interest in its existing location (herein referred to as private right-of-way) by reason of holding the fee, an easement or other property interest, evidence of such compensable property interest will be submitted to the COUNTY by the UTILITY for review and approval.
- 15. If the UTILITY is required to move all of its facilities from a portion of its private right-of-way, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the UTILITY will convey to the COUNTY by Quitclaim Deed the portion of its private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- 16. In the event the UTILITY is not required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right-of-way, the following provisions shall apply:
- a. To die extent die UTILITY has the right to so agree the COUNTY will have the right to construct, operate and maintain a highway over and along the portion of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- b. The subordination of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way to the right of the COUNTY to construct, operate, and maintain said highway will be effective and operative only to such air, surface and subsurface rights as may reasonably be required and are necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of said highway, and to enable the COUNTY to control access to the highway where such control is established; otherwise this subordination agreement will in no wise affect and impair the rights of the UTILITY, its successors and assigns, in or to its private right-of-way, including but not limited to the right to install additional facilities over, under and across the highway; provided, however, that any installation of additional facilities will be subject to the STATE'S responsibility and right to make prior determination that any such additional facilities are located so as not to impair the highway or any planned highway improvement and so as not to interfere with the free and safe flow of traffic thereon.
- c. It is mutually understood that the terms of this Agreement do not subordinate, affect or impair the rights of the UTILITY for reimbursement of the cost of such future relocation as may be required and necessitated by highway construction at some future date, as fully as if no subordination existed; however, such relocation will be in accordance with an additional agreement to be entered into at that time between die UTILITY and the COUNTY.
- 17. If the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right- of-way to a new location on the same private right-of-way, the following provisions shall apply:
- a. To the extent the UTILITY has the right to so agree, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the COUNTY will have die right to construct, operate and maintain a highway over and along the portion of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- b. The subordination of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way to the right of the COUNTY to construct, operate and maintain said highway will be effective and operative only to such air, surface and subsurface rights as may reasonably be required and are necessary for the construction, operation and maintenance of said highway, and to enable the COUNTY to control access to the highway where such control is established; otherwise this subordination agreement will in no wise affect and impair die rights of the UTILITY, its successors and assigns, in or to its private right-of-way, including but not limited to the right to install additional facilities over, under and across the highway; provided, however, that any installation of additional facilities will be subject to the COUNTY'S responsibility and right to make prior determination that any such additional facilities are located so as not to impair the highway or any planned highway improvement and so as not to interfere with the free and safe flow of traffic thereon.
- c. It is mutually understood that the terms of this Agreement do not subordinate, affect or impair the rights of the UTILITY for reimbursement of the cost of such future relocation as may be required and necessitated by highway construction at some future date, as fully as if no subordination existed; however, such relocation will be in accordance with an additional agreement to be entered into at that time between the UTILITY and the COUNTY.

- 18. If the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right- of-way to a new location on public right-of-way or if any such facilities are to be retained in place within the public right-of-way due to this project, the following provisions will apply:
- a. The cost of relocation will include reimbursement for acquisition of right-of-way by the UTILITY to place necessary guy wires and anchors on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way and the rights to cut, trim and remove, initially and from time to time as necessary, trees on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way which might then or thereafter endanger the facilities of the UTILITY.
- B. Reimbursement for future relocation of the UTILITY'S facilities will be in accordance with State laws in effect at the time such relocation is made; provided, however, the UTILITY will be reimbursed for the cost of any future relocation of the facilities, including the cost of acquisition of equivalent private right-of- way if such future relocation is outside the highway right-of-way and such relocation is required by the COUNTY, and provided that the prior relocation from private right-of-way to public right-of-way was without compensation to (he UTILITY for its compensable property interest in its private right-of-way.
- The UTILITY will be obligated for the payment of damages occasioned to private property, public utilities or the general public, caused by the legal liability (in accordance with Alabama and/or Federal law) of the UTILITY, its agents, servants, employees or facilities.
- 20. The UTILITY will have a copy of this Agreement on the project site at all times while work is being performed under this Agreement.
- Nothing contained in this Agreement, or in its execution, shall be construed to alter or affect the title of the COUNTY to the public right-of-way nor to increase, decrease or modify in any way the rights of the UTILITY provided by law with respect to the construction, operation or maintenance of its facilities on the public right-of-way.
- 22. Paragraph 22 sel forth below is applicable to this Agreement only if Federal appropriated funds are available or will be available in the project by which the relocation required by this Agreement is necessitated.
- 23. In the event any Federal Funds are utilized for this work, the following certification is made:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instruction
- The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to civil penalty of not less than \$ 10,000 and not more titan \$ 100,000 for each such failure.

In accordance with Title 23, U.S.C. Sec 313, Buy America, steel and iron materials and products used on this utility relocation shall comply with the Buy America requirements of 23 CFR 635.410. Minor items of foreign steel may be used if their cost is less than \$2,500 or one-tenth of one percent of the agreement amount, whichever is greater. Eligibility for reimbursement is subject to audit for compliance with the Buy America Requirement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers, officials or persons thereunto duly authorized, and this agreement is deemed to be dated and to be effective on the date hereinafter stated as the date of its approval by the Innovative Programs Engineer.

The County requests that (\square 100% county Funds: \boxtimes Federal participation) be used for utility work in this agreement.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Stanley Hill, aye; Ben Harrison, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Jason Black, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Steve Turner to authorize the Chairman to execute the following State Homeland Security Grant Program Cooperative Agreement between Limestone County EMA and the Alabama Law Enforcement Agency, for assistance allocation in the amount of \$47,308.00: Award Number 7LOC Limestone Sheriff Office for the following equipment

- Oculus Camera/Recorder System \$12,305.00
- (3) Portable Covert Surveillance systems \$16,469.79
- (1) Stalker MC360 Message Trailer \$12,894.00
- (1) Stalker SAM-R/Solar Trailer \$5,639.00

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM ASSISTANCE ALLOCATION - LETTER OF AGREEMENT

1. Sub-Grantee Name & Address: Limestone County EMA 1011 W Market Street Athens, AL 35611-2462		2. Issuing Office & Address: Alabama Law Enforcement Agency P.O. Box 304115 Montgomery, AL 36130-4115		
3. FY	4. Amount of:	5. Effective Dates	6. Award Number:	
2017	Federal: \$47,308.00 Total: \$47,308.00	Begin: 11/1/2017 End: 12/1/2018	7LOC Limestone Sheriff Office	

Limestone County EMA is herein referred to as the Sub-Grantee, the Alabama Law Enforcement Agency is herein referred to as ALEA, and FY 2017 is herein referred to as the Agreement Fiscal Year.

- 1. Applicable Federal Regulations and Guidance: The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient must comply with the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), as applicable: 2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 220, 225, and 230. The Sub- Grantee and Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient must comply with Federal Acquisition Regulation Sub-part 31.2, Contracts with Commercial Organizations. The Sub-Grantee and Equipment Recipient must comply with all applicable guidelines and requirements in the Funding Opportunity Announcement for these funds.
- 2. Allowable Costs: The allowability of costs incurred under any grant shall be determined in accordance with the general principles of allowability and standards for selected cost items as set forth in the applicable Code of Federal Regulation referenced above.
- 3. Audit Requirements: The Sub-Grantee and Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient agree to comply with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Further, records with respect to all matters covered by this award shall be made available for audit and inspection by ALEA and/or any of its duly authorized representatives. If required, the audit report must specifically cite that the report was done in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. If a compliance audit is not required, a written certification must be provided at the end of each audit period stating that the Sub-Grantee has not expended the amount of federal funds that would require a compliance audit. The Sub-Grantee agrees to accept these requirements.
- 4. Non-Supplanting Agreement: The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient shall not use FEMA/ Homeland Security Grant Program funds to supplant state or local funds or other resources that would otherwise have been made available for this program. Further, if a position created by a grant is filled from within, the vacancy created by this action must be filled within 30 days. If the vacancy is not filled within 30 days, the sub-grantee must stop charging the grant for the new position. Upon filling the vacancy, the Sub-Grantee may resume charging for the grant position.
- **5.** Project Implementation: The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient agrees to implement all projects within 90 days following the award effective date or be subject to automatic cancellation of the award. Evidence of project implementation must be detailed in the first Biannual Strategy Implementation Report (BSIR) following the award.
- **6.** Written Approval of Changes: Any mutually agreed upon changes to this award must be approved in writing by ALEA, prior to implementation or obligation and shall be incorporated in written amendments to this award. This procedure for changes to the approved award is not limited to budgetary changes, but also includes changes of substance in project activities and changes in the project director or key professional personnel identified in the approved application.
- 7. Individual Consultants: Billings for individual consultants/contractors must include at a minimum: a description of services; dates of services; number of hours for services performed; rate charged for services; and, the total cost of services performed, consultant costs must be within the prevailing rates.
- 8. Bidding Requirements: The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient must comply with proper competitive bidding procedures as required by 2 CFR 200 Subpart D (formerly OMB Circular A-102) or OMB Circular A- 110, as applicable, and pertinent provisions of the Code of Alabama, including, but not limited to, Section 11-47-6. Failure to follow the Federal, State and local required bidding procedures will result in purchases not being eligible for reimbursement with federal funds.
- 9. Personnel and Travel Costs: The FEMA/DHS Notice of Funding Opportunity is the source document for all Homeland Security Grant Program related financial matters, including personnel and travel costs. The Sub-Grantee must comply with the provisions in this guide. This guide has been distributed by ALEA annually during the past several years and is available online and upon request. Personnel and travel costs must comply with local, State and Federal policies and procedures, and policies must be applied uniformly to travel costs. Travel costs must not exceed the rate set by State regulation; however, at no time can the travel and lodging rates exceed the federal rates established by the U.S. General Services Administration

- (GSA). Also note that the FEMA/DHS Notice of Funding Opportunity provides a listing of unauthorized expenses. Be advised that tips while on travel are not allowable and food/beverage expenses are restricted.
- 10. Terms of Grant Period: Funds may not be obligated prior to the effective date of the grant. The final request for payment must be submitted no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the end of the grant period. Also, any obligation of funds dated after the expiration of the grant period will not be eligible for reimbursement.
- 11. Utilization and Payment of Funds: Funds awarded are to be expended only for purposes and activities included in the approved project plan and budget. Items submitted for reimbursement must be documented in the budget detail worksheet in order to be eligible for reimbursement. Failing to meet this requirement without prior written approval will result in a payment adjustment to correct previous overpayments, disallowances or under payments resulting from audit.
- 12. Recording and Documentation of Receipts and Expenditures: The Sub-Grantee's accounting procedures must provide for accurate and timely recording of receipt of funds by source of expenditures made from such funds and unexpended balances. These records must contain information pertaining to awards, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, expenditures and program income. Controls must be established which are adequate to ensure that expenditures charged to the award are for allowable purposes. Equipment purchases may only include items included in the Authorized Equipment List (AEL). Additionally, effective control and accountability must be maintained for all award cash, real property and other assets. Accounting records must be supported by such source documentation as cancelled checks, paid bills, payroll documentation, time and attendance records, contract documents, award documents, etc.
- 13. Financial Responsibility: The financial responsibility of the Sub-Grantee must be such that the Sub-Grantee can properly discharge the public trust which accompanies the authority to expend public funds. Adequate accounting systems shall meet the following minimum criteria:
 - **a.** Accounting records should provide information needed to adequately identify the receipt of funds under each award and the expenditure of funds for each award;
 - **b.** Entries in accounting records should refer to subsidiary records and/or documentation which support the entry and which can be readily located;
 - c. The accounting system should provide accurate and current financial reporting information;
 - **d.** The accounting system should be integrated with an adequate system of internal controls to safeguard the funds and assets covered, check the accuracy and reliability of accounting data, promote operational efficiency and encourage adherence to prescribed management policies.
- 14. Property Management Requirements:
 - a. Effective control and accountability must be maintained for all award-purchased property. The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient (Sub-Recipient) must adequately safeguard all such property and must assure that it is used solely for authorized purposes. The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient (Sub-Recipient) will ensure proper use, maintenance, protection and preservation of such property. All equipment acquired under a Federal award will be stored on public property. Title to non-expendable property acquired in whole or in part with award funds shall be vested with the Sub-Grantee or the Equipment Recipient (Sub-Recipient).
 - **b.** The federal procedures for managing equipment will be the responsibility of the Sub-Grantee and/or Sub-Recipient. Procedures for managing equipment (including replacement equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part under a Federal award, until disposition takes place will, at a minimum, meet the following requirements:
 - (1) Property records must be maintained that include a description of the property, a serial number or other identification number, the source of funding for the property (including the FAIN), who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the property, percentage of Federal participation in the project costs for the Federal award under which the property was acquired, the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property.

- (2) A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with property records at least once every two years.
- (3) A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage, or theft must be investigated.
- (4) Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the property in good condition.
- (5) If the non-Federal entity is authorized or required to sell the property, proper sales procedures must be established to ensure the highest possible return.
- c. Disposition: In accordance to 2CFR §200.313: Equipment shall be used in the program or project for which it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the program or project continues to be supported by Federal funds. Property may be retained by the Sub-Grantee agency and signed out to other NIMS compliant agencies on an as-needed basis, or property may be signed over to another NIMS complaint agency permanently. Property will only be transferred for disposal if it is certified as no longer serviceable and coordinated in advance with ALEA. Theft, destruction, or loss of property shall be reported to ALEA immediately.
- d. Vehicles: The AEL, section 12 (Vehicles) indicates that special-purpose vehicles may be purchased and used only for the transport of CBRNE terrorism response equipment and personnel to the incident site. *These vehicles may not be used for routine administration or daily operations*. The mileage for all vehicles purchased with Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) funds will be checked during periodic monitoring visits. Licensing, registration, insurance and other fees are the responsibility of the jurisdiction and are not allowable under this grant. In addition, general purpose vehicles (patrol cars, executive transportation, etc.), fire apparatus and non-CBRNE tactical/armored assault vehicles are not allowable.
- e. Equipment Marking: The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient agree that, when practicable, any equipment purchased with HSGP funds shall be prominently marked as follows: Purchased with funds provided by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security. Decals displaying the ALEA logo and the above phrasing may be obtained by contacting ALEA.
- 15. Performance: Funds may be terminated or fund payments discontinued by ALEA where it finds a substantial failure to comply with the provisions of the legislation governing these funds or regulations promulgated, including those award conditions or other obligations established by ALEA. In the event the Sub-Grantee or the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient fails to perform the services described herein and has previously received an award from ALEA, the full amount of the payments made shall be reimbursed to ALEA. However, if the services described herein are partially performed, and the Subgrantee has previously received financial assistance, then a proportional reimbursement shall be made to ALEA for payments made.
- 16. Deobligation of Funds: All expenditures of award funds must be completed and the award closed out within thirty (30) calendar days of the end of the award period. Failure to close out the award in a timely manner will result in an automatic deobligation of the remaining award funds by ALEA.
- 17. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA): The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient must comply with all requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as applicable.
- 18. Compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Handicapped): All recipients of Federal funds must comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Therefore, the Federal funds recipient pursuant to the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 hereby gives assurance that no otherwise qualified handicapped person shall, solely by reason of handicap, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of or be subject to discrimination, including discrimination in employment, in any program or activity that receives or benefits from Federal financial assistance. The recipient agrees it will ensure that requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 shall be included in the agreements with and be binding on all of its sub-grantee, contractors, subcontractors, assignees or successors.

- 19. Utilization of Minority Businesses: Sub-Grantees and Equipment Recipients are encouraged to utilize qualified minority firms where cost and performance of major contract work will not conflict with funding or time schedules.
- **20.** Political Activity: None of the funds, materials, property or services provided directly or indirectly under this agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office, or otherwise in violation of the provisions of the "Hatch Act."
- 21. Debarment Certification: With the signing of the cooperative agreement, the Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient agrees to comply with Federal Debarment and Suspension regulations as outlined in the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -Lower Tier Covered Transactions" form. The Sub- Grantee and the Equipment Recipient (Sub-Recipient) agrees to be registered and active without any exclusions with in the federal database, the System for Award Management (SAM) as outlined in the FEMA/DHS Notice of Funding Opportunity Guide.
- 22. Drug-Free Workplace Certification: This Certification is required by the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. The federal regulations, published in the January 31, 1989, Federal Register, require certification by state agency recipients that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. The certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when ALEA determines to award the funds. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of the award, or government-wide suspension or debarment.
- 23. Publications: The Sub-Grantee agrees that all publications created with funding under this award shall prominently contain the following statement: "This Document was prepared under a grant from the Office of Grants & Training (G&T), FEMA. Points of view or opinions expressed in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of G&T or the Federal Emergency Management Agency/Department of Homeland Security". The Sub-Grantee also agrees that one copy of any such publication will be submitted to ALEA to be placed on file and distributed as appropriate to other potential interested parties. ALEA may waive the requirement for submission of any specific publication upon submission of a request providing justification from the Sub-Grantee.
- 24. Closed-Captioning of Public Service Announcements: Any television public service announcement that is produced or funded in whole or in part by any agency or instrumentality of the federal government shall include closed captioning of the verbal content of such announcement.
- 25. Fiscal Regulations: The fiscal administration of awards shall be subject to such further rules, regulations and policies concerning accounting and records, payment of funds, cost allowability, submission of financial reports, etc., as may be prescribed by ALEA guidelines or "Special Conditions" placed on the award.
- 26. Compliance Agreement: The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient or Sub-Recipient agree to abide by all Terms and Conditions including "Special Conditions" placed on the award.
- 27. Leasing of Space: Requests to lease space for any purpose must be coordinated in advance with ALEA and documented in budget detail worksheets. Specific provisions are provided below. previously planned or budgeted activities is strictly prohibited.
 - a. Equipment Storage: Rental or leasing of space for a newly acquired, allowable equipment items is allowable. Funds may be used to cover only the portion of the rental/lease period that occurs during the award project period. Supplanting of previously planned or budgeted activities is strictly prohibited.
 - **b.** Exercises: Rental or leasing of space for design, development, conduct and evaluation of exercises is allowable. This includes the costs related to the rental of space/locations for both exercise planning and conduct.

- 28. Suspension or Termination of Funding: ALEA may suspend, in whole or in part, and/or terminate funding for or impose other sanctions on a Sub-Grantee or Equipment Recipient for any of the following reasons:
 - a. Failure to comply substantially with the requirements or statutory objectives of the 2016 Omnibus Appropriations Act issued there under, or other provisions of Federal Law.
 - b. Failure to adhere to the requirements, standard conditions or special conditions of this award, including property accountability and vehicle usage.
 - c. Proposing or implementing substantial program changes to the extent that, if originally submitted, the agreement would not have been issued.
 - d. Failure to submit reports on a semi-annual basis and as otherwise required.
 - e. Filing a false certification, other report or document.
 - f. Other good cause shown.
- 29. National Incident Management System (NIMS): The SAA met the NIMS compliance requirements in order to receive FY17 Homeland Security Grant Program funding. The jurisdictions and agencies that have complied with NIMS requirements by the annual deadline are also eligible to receive FY17 Homeland Security Grant Program funding.
 - a. The Sub-Grantee of FY17 Homeland Security Grant Program funding (i.e., those that met the NIMS compliance requirements) may only allocate Homeland Security Grant Program funding for those cities, towns, and agencies that also met the annual NIMS requirements. The listing of NIMS compliant jurisdictions and agencies will be documented, maintained, and distributed by the NIMS point of contact at AEMA.
 - **b.** If any Sub-Grantee allocates Homeland Security Grant Program funding for a city, town or agency that is not NIMS compliant, the reimbursement claim will not be processed by ALEA and the claim will be returned without action.
- 30. Alabama Mutual Aid System Agreement (AMAS): When funding is provided for Alabama Mutual Aid System (AMAS) related activities, The Sub-Grantee and the Equipment Recipient (Sub-Recipient) agrees to remain a party to the AMAS program.
- 31. Budget Detail Worksheet (BDW):
- a. The Sub-Grantee will submit a BDW to the Alabama Law Enforcement Agency (ALEA). The Sub-Grantee must receive approval of the BDW in writing from ALEA prior to obligating funds, making commitments, or purchasing any of the requested items. The BDW submitted by the Sub-Grantee will provide a complete and detailed description of the items to be purchased (equipment, training, and exercises), and will also provide a valid estimate of the actual quantities and costs for the items. The items listed on the BDW must be allowable in accordance with the FEMA/DHS Homeland Security **Grant** Program guidance. Any equipment requested must also be listed on the current version of the Authorized Equipment List (AEL). Additionally, a revised BDW must be submitted for addition or deletion of any items from the original worksheet. If additions, deletions, or changes in cost total \$1,000.00 or more, submission of project revision and BDW is required to be submitted to ALEA for written approval. Electronic copies of BDW must be submitted within 60 days of receipt of this award. The electronic BDW is a requirement in addition to the paper copy that is submitted.
- b. In regard to Law Enforcement, the Sub-Grantee agrees to spend the appropriate percentage of this award in compliance with FEMA/DHS Homeland Security Grant Program guidance and ALEA special instructions. Additionally, the dollar amount and overall percentage for Law Enforcement expenditures will be documented in a letter and submitted with the BDW.
- 32. Exercises: All exercises conducted with Homeland Security Grant Program funding must be executed in accordance with the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP), must be aligned with NIMS, the State THIRA, and the priorities and capabilities identified in the Multi-year Training and Exercise Plan. The Alabama Emergency Management Agency (AEMA) serves as the single point of contact (POC) for Homeland Security and Emergency Management related exercises within the state. All exercises must be coordinated in advance with the designated AEMA exercise point of contact in advance of the exercise planning cycle. The AEMA POC must be kept informed during each step of

the exercise process. In accordance with HSGP guidance, award recipients must ensure that an After Action Report and Improvement Plan are prepared for each exercise conducted with US DHS/FEMA support (grant funds and direct support). The two reports must be coordinated with the AEMA exercise POC and submitted with reimbursement requests.

- 33. Overtime and Backfill: Sub-Grantees must read and comply with the funding restrictions provided in FY16 Homeland Security Grant Program guidance. A summary of the funding restrictions pertaining to overtime is provided below. Overtime will not typically be authorized and all requests for overtime must be coordinated in advance and approved by ALEA.
 - a. Organizational Overtime: Overtime costs are allowable for personnel to participate in information, investigative, and intelligence sharing activities specifically related to homeland security and *specifically requested by a Federal agency*. Allowable costs are limited to overtime associated with federally requested participation in eligible fusion activities including antiterrorism task forces, Joint Terrorism Task Forces (JTTFs), Area Maritime Security Committees (as required by the Maritime Transportation Security Act of 2002), US DHS Border Enforcement Security Task Forces, and Integrated Border Enforcement Teams.
 - b. Operational Overtime: In support of efforts to enhance capabilities for detecting, deterring, disrupting, and preventing acts of terrorism, operational overtime costs are allowable for increased security measures at critical infrastructure sites during US DHS-declared periods of increased security. Subject to these elevated threat level conditions, HSGP funds requested for organizational costs may be used to support select operational expenses associated with increased security measures at critical infrastructure sites. In order to expend HSGP funds on operational overtime costs, prior approval in writing must be provided by the FEMA Sub-Grantee. Consumable costs, such as fuel expenses, are *not allowed* except as part of the standard National Guard deployment package. Unless Sub-Grantee is a part of the Operation Stonegarden in conjunction with FEMA/DHS and Office of Border Patrol and Customs.
- 34. Construction and Renovation: The use of HSGP funds for construction and renovation is generally prohibited unless it is a necessary component of a security system at a designated critical infrastructure facility or unless it involves erection of communications towers included in the interoperable communications plan. Construction and renovation projects must be coordinated in advance with ALEA and documented/approved in budget detail worksheets. Additionally, the Sub-Grantee must provide to the S AA (ALEA) appropriate documentation required by HSGP guidance (for forwarding to FEMA) prior to any draw down of funds. Sub-Grantees must also refer to and comply with FEMA information bulletin #329, Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation Requirements for Grants. Projects which are initiated or completed before an EHP review has been approved, where HSGP funds are to be used, will not be eligible for funding
- 35. Reporting Requirement: The Sub-Grantee agrees to submit Quarterly Reporting to ALEA, fifteen (15) days after the end of each quarter. The Sub-Grantee agrees to submit a Final Report thirty days (30) after the grant end date.
- 36. Civil Rights Act of 1964-Title VI: All Sub-Grantees and Sub-Recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the *Civil Rights Act of1964 (42* U.S.C. section 2000d et sea.), which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. Regulations for implementation of the act can be found at 6 C.F.R., Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Sub-grantees should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest. Sub-grantees should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under the applicable CFR covering New Restrictions on Lobbying, Government-wide

Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants). The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the State Funding Agency (ALEA) determines to award the covered transaction, grant or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented by the applicable CFR, for persons entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over \$100,000, as defined by the applicable CFR, the applicant certifies that:

- A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;
- **B.** If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form -- LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions;
- C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, contracts under grants and cooperative agreements, and subcontracts) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
- 2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS (SUB-RECIPIENT) As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented under the applicable CFR, for prospective participants in primary covered transactions, as defined in the applicable 2CFR Part 180—
 - **A.** The applicant certifies that it and its principals:
 - (1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
 - (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph A(2) of this certification; and
 - (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default; and
 - **B.** Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an explanation to this application.
- 3. A. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS) APPLICABLE TO SUB-GRANTEES RECEIVING \$50,000 OR MORE, AND ALL STATE AGENCIES REGARDLESS OF AWARD AMOUNT.

As required by the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and implemented under the applicable CFR for grantees —

The applicant certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

- (1) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
- (2) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
 - (a) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
 - (b) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
 - (c) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs, and
 - (d) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;
- (3) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (1);
- (4) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (1) that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the employee will
 - (a) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
 - (b) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
- (5) Notifying the agency, in writing within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (4)(b), from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers or convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to the State Funding Agency. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;
- (6) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph (4)(b), with respect to any employee who is so convicted --
 - (a) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or
 - (b) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
 - (5) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), and (6).
- B. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES WHO ARE INDIVIDUALS) APPLICABLE TO SUBGRANTEES RECEIVING \$50,000 OR MORE.

As required by the Federal Drug-Free Workplace of 1988, and implemented under the applicable CFR for sub-grantees —

- **A.** As a condition of the grant I certify that I will not engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in conducting any activity with the grant; and
- **B.** If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from a violation occurring during the conduct of any grant activity, I will report the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the conviction to the State Funding Agency.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Steve Turner, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Ben Harrison and seconded by Jason Black to authorize the Chairman to execute the Guardian IPCO Superior Water Treatment Program Agreement to test and provide sufficient water treatment chemical to control scale, corrosion and fouling in the boiler at the Courthouse: \$1,600 annually.

GUARDIAN IPCO

Advanced Water Management

SUPERIOR WATER TREATMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT

Between: Rickey Thompson
Maintenance Super

Maintenance Supervisor Limestone County Courthouse 200 West Washington Street Athens, AL 35611 Guardian IPCO, Inc P.O. Box 380128 Birmingham, AL 35238

Location to be serviced: Athens, AL

System(s) to be serviced: closed loop water systems

Contract period: effective December 1, 2017 and on going with automatic renewal unless specified otherwise. This agreement may be cancelled by either party with 30 days written notice.

SERVICES PROVIDED BY GUARDIAN IPCO

- 1. Provide sufficient water treatment chemicals to control scale, corrosion, and fouling in the treated systems.
- 2. Provide a qualified field service technician to perform on-site service visits four times per year.
- 3. Monitor the chemistry of treated systems and make adjustments to chemical feed/control equipment as needed
- 4. Provide computer-generated service reports that show the tests performed and the current status of the treatment program.
- 5. Investigate and report on opportunities for energy and/or operating cost savings.

OBLIGATIONS OF SERVICE RECIPIENT

The service recipient agrees to:

- 1. Pay to Guardian IPCO, Inc the sum of \$1,600.00. The fee will be billed quarterly in arrears in the amount \$400.00 not including applicable sales tax. Subsequent years will be subject to increase of 5% per year if necessary.
- 2. Incur an Energy/Environmental Recovery Fee of 5% per the Producer Price Index if deemed necessary by the vendor.
- 3. Provide reasonable access to all treated systems during normal business hours and during emergency visits after hours, on weekends, or during holidays as necessary.
- 4. Provide at least one week notice for scheduled annual internal equipment inspections.
- 5. Provide industry standard preventative maintenance to the equipment systems such as semi-annual physical washing out of the cooling tower system.
- 6. Review all service reports provided by Guardian IPCO regarding the treatment program status and to act on the recommendations made therein.

The terms of this Agreement are based, in part, on information obtained during a facility survey and provided by the Service Recipient to Guardian IPCO. Should system and operating conditions be other than as represented, Guardian-IPCO reserves the right to adjust the terms of this Agreement, including the price charged.

Guardian IPCO is not responsible for the structural or mechanical failure of any treated water system, including any interruption of water delivery or water loss unless it is caused by willful fault or neglect of Guardian IPCO. Any leak in the treated systems serviced by Guardian IPCO is expected to be repaired upon discovery and is the responsibility of the Service Recipient. The Service Recipient will incur the cost of the excess chemical(s) used due to the failure to effect repairs in a timely manner.

The Service Recipient agrees to indemnify Guardian IPCO, Inc. for any and all loss or damage arising from the failure of the Service Recipient to perform all provisions of this Agreement and for any and all claims or liability for loss or damage resulting from leaks or other structural or mechanical defects or malfunctions in the treated water systems.

By:	By:	
		Cindy Mitchell, President, Guardian-IPCO
Date:	Date:	

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Ben Harrison, aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Steve Turner, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Stanley Hill to authorize the Chairman to execute the following Resolution and Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs Recreational Trails Agreement No. 17-RT-54-09.

RESOLUTION

LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION

WHEREAS, to provide for, and enhance the health and well-being of the general public, the Limestone County Commission intends to make improvements to the Richard Martin Trail; and,

WHEREAS, the scope of said project consists of repairing two bridges, construct and install two interpretive signs, correct trail erosion, and conduct a trail assessment; and,

WHEREAS, the Limestone County Commission has received, and accepts, through the Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs, Recreational Trails Program Project 17-RT-54-09, in the amount of \$128,800; and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Limestone County Commission herein pledges and commits the sum of \$32,200 in matching funds, from a combination of in-kind and/or cash, to said project. The Limestone County Commission acknowledges its understanding of, and ultimate obligation to, provide the total said matching funds for the project; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Limestone County Commission authorizes its Chairman to sign all documents required for the execution of this Grant, and herewith acknowledges its understanding that it will comply with all such assurances, and with all applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations.

Done this day, December 4, 2017

Mark Yarbrough
Chairman
Limestone County Commission

Recreational Trails Program State's Program

STATE OF ALABAMA)
MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA)

AGREEMENT NO. 17-RT-54-09

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is effective as of this **21st** day of **September, 2017**, by and between the **Limestone County Commission** (herein called "Subrecipient") and the Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs (herein called "ADECA" and "Pass-through Entity").

Subrecipient's Name: Limestone County Commission

Subrecipient's DUNS Number: 0503122771

Federal Award Identification Number ("FAIN"): 01RT17312Z940

Federal Award Date: September 21,2017

Subaward Period of Performance Start Date and End Date: September 21,2017 through September 30,

2019

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement: \$128,800.00 Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to Subrecipient: \$128,800.00

Total Amount of Federal Award: \$128,800.00

Federal Award Project Description: Repair two bridges, construct and install two interpretive signs,

correct trail erosion, and conduct a trail assessment of the Richard Martin Trail.

Name of Federal Awarding Agency: U. S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway

Administration

Pass-through Entity: Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs (ADECA)
Contact Information for Pass-through Entity's Official: Kenneth W. Boswell, ADECA Director

Identification of Whether Subaward is Research and Development: No

Indirect Cost Rate for Federal Award: 0%

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, ADECA desires to engage the Subrecipient to carry out certain activities or services hereinafter described in connection with an undertaking which is expected to be financed or partially financed through the Federal Assistance authorized under the State's Recreational Trails Program (RTP).

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

ADECA hereby agrees to engage the Subrecipient, and the Subrecipient hereby agrees to carry out the activities hereinafter set forth in connection with the State's Recreational Trails Program administered by ADECA, under RTP Project Number 17-RT- 54-09 made to the Subrecipient from the federal award (FAIN 01RT17312Z940) identified herein above.

The Subrecipient, in assisting ADECA during the period of this Agreement and with the Federal Assistance provided for in this Agreement, shall perform all the necessary services stated in this Agreement.

Upon execution of this Agreement, ADECA agrees to provide to the Subrecipient the Federal Assistance under Public Law 105-178, as amended. The funding agency is the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. The award of funds is made under the Recreational Trails Program Legislation: 23 USC 206, as amended. Such Federal Assistance is subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all applicable laws, and regulations, and all other requirements of ADECA, the State, or the U.S. Department of Transportation, now or hereafter in effect. This Agreement is effective with respect to such Federal Assistance as of the date specified above, and consists of (1) the Letter of Award and submissions made with respect thereto; (2) the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application specified herein, including any assurances, certifications, maps, schedules, and other submissions; (3) the Recreational Trails Program Legislation: 23 USC 206 as amended, and State Policies; (4) the ADECA Recreational Programs Administrative Manual to include any addendums thereto; (5) the following General Terms and Conditions; and (6) the provisions included in Attachment A.

A. DEFINITIONS

Except to the extent modified or supplemented by this Agreement, any term defined in 23 USC 206, as amended, shall have the same meaning when used herein.

- 1. "Agreement" means this Agreement as described above, and any amendments or supplements hereto.
- 2. "Applicant" means the entity designated as such in the Letter of Award and herein as the Subrecipient.
- 3. "Application" means the Subrecipient's Application for Federal Assistance that has been approved by ADECA and designated as such per the Letter of Award.
- 4. "Certifications" means the certifications submitted with the grant application and the certifications listed in the Letter of Award.
- 5. "Federal Assistance" means the Federal assistance, grant(s), funds, and any loan(s) secured by loan guarantee(s), provided by ADECA to the Subrecipient under this Agreement.
- 6. "Federal Award" means the Federal grant awarded from the Federal awarding agency to the State of Alabama and administered by ADECA as the State Administering Agency, and which is identified by its "Federal Award Identification Number" (FAIN). Herein this Agreement, the Federal Award is FAIN 01RT17312Z940.
- 7. "Program" means the Recreational Trails Program, project, or other activities, including the administration thereof, with respect to which Federal Assistance is being provided under this Agreement.
 - 8. "State" means the State of Alabama.
- 9. "Subrecipient" means the entity signing this Agreement who is the Applicant or entity designated as a recipient for grant or loan assistance in the Letter of Award.
- 10. "Second-tier subrecipient" means each entity with which the Subrecipient contracts for work to be performed or services to be provided as set out in the scope of services.

B. SCOPE OF SERVICES

- 1. The Subrecipient agrees to do, perform, and carry out in an expedient, satisfactory, and proper manner, as determined by ADECA, the work activities and administrative services described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application submitted for Federal Assistance under this RTP project and the terms of this Agreement. The Subrecipient further agrees that all activities carried out under the terms of this Agreement shall satisfy all requirements of ADECA, and shall be as described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application unless otherwise expressly directed by ADECA.
- 2. The Subrecipient agrees to permit and to facilitate reviews by ADECA of the work activities and administrative services described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application and herein this Agreement at Montgomery or at other places as ADECA may determine.
- 3. The Subrecipient shall submit to ADECA progress reports describing the progress of the work activities and administrative services on a quarterly basis and when requested by ADECA.
- 4. The Subrecipient agrees to accept responsibility for ensuring compliance by second-tier subrecipient entities to which it makes funding assistance hereunder available.

C. CHANGES

- 1. ADECA or the Subrecipient may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of services to be performed by the Subrecipient under this Agreement. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the Subrecipient's compensation, which are mutually agreed upon by and between ADECA and the Subrecipient, shall follow ADECA's governing policy and be incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.
- 2. Notwithstanding the terms stated in Section C.1. herein this Agreement, ADECA may, from time to time, approve a revision to the Subrecipient's budget document and/or scope for the RTP project under this Agreement without a formal written amendment to this Agreement. However, for such revision to be valid, it shall be approved by ADECA. In no case shall the revision change the total amount of compensation identified under the terms stated in Section F. herein this Agreement without a formal amendment to this Agreement.

D. PERSONNEL

- 1. It shall be the responsibility of the Subrecipient, when necessary, to hire personnel or to contract or subcontract for the work to be performed as set out in the Scope of Services, to include the work activities and administrative services described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application and herein this Agreement. All persons so hired or under contract or subcontract shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to perform such services.
- 2. The Subrecipient shall provide to ADECA a sampling of all contracts and subcontracts for said work or services as and when requested by ADECA.

E. TIME OF PERFORMANCE

The Subrecipient shall commence performance of this Agreement on **September 21, 2017.** The full Grant amount shall be expended by **September 30,2019.**

- 1. ADECA retains the right to rescind all or any part of the Federal Assistance committed by this Agreement and the Letter of Award. Such right may be exercised if action or the lack of action by or on behalf of the Subrecipient indicates to ADECA that the work activities and administrative services described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved
- Application, and/or the terms of this Agreement, are not adhered to or are not progressing according to this Agreement.
- 2. The Subrecipient, by execution of this Agreement, certifies that the Subrecipient will implement the work activities and administrative services described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application and the terms of this Agreement substantially in compliance with this Agreement,

and that failure to do so may affect the Subrecipient's continued capacity to participate in ADECA's future Federal Assistance and other funding decisions.

F. METHOD OF PAYMENT

- 1. ADECA and the Subrecipient have agreed upon a total payment of RTP funds not to exceed \$128,800.00.
- 2. The Subrecipient will be paid on an advance payment basis provided that it maintains a cash management plan, maintains or demonstrates the willingness and ability to maintain both written procedures to minimize the transfer of funds and their disbursement by the Subrecipient and financial management systems that meet the standards for fund control and accountability in accordance with 2 CFR §200.305. If the advance requested exceeds thirty (30) days, the Subrecipient must provide a written explanation with the invoice requesting advance funds and is subject to approval by ADECA. Source documentation and a follow-up invoice must be submitted to account for the actual expenditures made against advances.
- 3. The Subrecipient will be paid on a reimbursement basis when the above requirements for advances cannot be met, the federal awarding agency has specific conditions per 2 CFR §200.305, or the Subrecipient requests, in writing, payment by reimbursement.
- 4. The Subrecipient agrees to match the expenditures incurred in the execution of activities stated herein with matching cash or "in-kind" services as shown in the approved (original or revised) RTP Project Cost Estimate. Payment of funds are subject to and dependent upon the availability of Federal funds awarded to ADECA for the program purposes herein stated.
- 5. This Agreement, authorized by the State of Alabama on **September 21, 2017**, under the Letter of Award of State RTP funds for RTP Project Number **17-RT-54-09** is hereby accepted by the Subrecipient.
- 6. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with, and to accept responsibility for compliance by any public or private entity carrying out RTP grant activity on behalf of the Subrecipient in accordance with, the terms and conditions of this Agreement, applicable laws, applicable regulations, and all requirements of ADECA, the State, or the U.S. Department of Transportation, now or hereafter in effect, pertaining to the Federal Assistance provided.
- 7. The Subrecipient must invoice no less than quarterly but may invoice as often as once a month. All invoices must be cleared within sixty (60) days of the close of the Agreement and appropriate back-up data must be furnished with each invoice in accordance with ADECA's RTP policy.
- 8. In addition to the above clauses, the Subrecipient and its Contractors, Subcontractors, and Vendors shall agree with, and shall adhere to, the terms stated in Section K. herein this Agreement and Attachment A to this Agreement.

G. CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

Within 60 days of the project completion date (when all work on a project is completed, or the date the project expires, whichever comes first), the Subrecipient shall follow the ADECA Community and Economic Development Division's established RTP closeout procedures when closing the RTP project under this Agreement. The Subrecipient may access ADECA's RTP closeout documents from the ADECA Community and Economic Development Division's RTP staff and on the ADECA website at www.adeca.alabama.gov.

H. RECORD RETENTION

1. Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other non-Federal entity (to include ADECA, the Subrecipient, Contractors, Subcontractors and Vendors) records pertinent to a Federal award (to include the RTP project under this Agreement) must be retained for a period of at least three years from the date of ADECA's submission of the final expenditure report on this Federal

Award to the U.S. Department of Transportation, or for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of ADECA's submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the U.S. Department of Transportation (as the Federal awarding agency) or pass-through entity (the State, and ADECA) in the case of the Subrecipient.

2. Because Federal agencies (to include the U.S. Department of Transportation) may have different record retention requirements, each of ADECA's Divisions will have its own record retention requirements so as to comply with the appropriate Federal record retention requirements. For the ADECA Community and Economic Development Division's Recreational Trails Program record retention requirements applicable to this Federal Award and the RTP project under this Agreement, the following record retention requirements are applicable:

The Subrecipient is required to keep all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to this award in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 for a period of three years; except the records shall be retained beyond the three-year period if audit findings have not been resolved. The retention period begins from the date of the final expenditure report for the project.

3. When applicable, the Subrecipient, Contractors, Subcontractors and Vendors shall comply with the Alabama Competitive Bid Law (codified at §41-16-54, *Code of Alabama 1975)*, which requires that all original bids, together with all documents pertaining to the award of a contract, shall be retained in accordance with a record retention period of at least seven years.

I. INCORPORATION OF SUBMISSIONS MADE UNDER THE LETTER OF AWARD

The submissions made pursuant to the Letter of Award are incorporated into this Agreement by reference to said Letter. The Subrecipient, by execution of this Agreement, further certifies that:

- 1. The Subrecipient has complied with all applicable requirements of 23 CFR 771.105, and the Subrecipient's applicable environmental review forms will be submitted for approval by ADECA.
- 2. The Subrecipient has complied with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (54 U.S.C. 300101) and Executive Order 11592.
- 3. Where applicable, the Subrecipient has consulted with other State agencies, as appropriate, and has obtained applicable permits and/or has satisfied other conditions imposed from those State agencies which have authority to review RTP project applications, and/or issue permits, and/or retain other responsibilities in regard to local or State projects.

J. OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) UNIFORM GUIDANCE FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

For any and all contracts or grants made by a non-Federal entity under a Federal award, the non-Federal entity must comply with 2 CFR Part 200, the OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, which includes but is not limited to, Subpart B (2 CFR 200.100), General Provisions; Subpart C (2 CFR 200.200), Pre-Federal Awards Requirements and Contents of Federal Awards; Subpart D (2 CFR 200.300), Post Federal Award Regulations; Subpart E (2 CFR 200.400), Cost Principles; Subpart F (2 CFR 200.500), Audit Requirements; and all accompanying Appendices.

For any and all contracts made by a non-Federal entity under a Federal award, 2 CFR 200.326 requires provisions covering the following (as found in Appendix II to Part 200) be included and adhered to as applicable and unless specifically excluded by other Federal regulations:

1. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

(a) A clause addressing a termination for cause and convenience must be included in all contracts in excess of \$10,000. The following provisions apply to termination under this grant agreement, whether termination by ADECA or by the Subrecipient. The performance of work under this agreement may be terminated in whole or in part for the following circumstances:

- (1) Termination for Convenience. This Agreement may be terminated by either party with thirty (30) days written notice. Said notice shall specify the reasons for requesting such termination. If ADECA determines that continuation of the work will serve no useful public purpose, then this Agreement may be terminated by ADECA, and the Subrecipient shall be entitled to necessary expenses incurred through the date of termination or the date services are last provided, whichever occurs first.
- (2) Termination for Cause. If, through any cause, the Subrecipient shall fail to fulfill in a timely manner its obligations under this Agreement, or if the Subrecipient shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, and such failure or violation is not corrected within fifteen (15) days after such notice is given by ADECA to the Subrecipient, then ADECA shall thereupon have the right to immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement by giving written notice to the Subrecipient of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof.
- (b) In the event of termination, either for convenience or for cause, all property, finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, computer tapes, computer programs, and reports prepared by the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall, at the option of ADECA, and if in accordance with applicable State and Federal regulations, become the property of ADECA. The Subrecipient shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such documents and other materials.
- (c) Notwithstanding the above, the Subrecipient shall not be relieved of liability to ADECA for damages sustained by ADECA by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by the Subrecipient, and ADECA may withhold any payments to the Subrecipient for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due ADECA from the Subrecipient is determined.

2. HEARING ON APPEAL

- (a) The Subrecipient shall have the right to appeal any determination to terminate made by ADECA; however, if the Subrecipient has failed to submit its appeal, in writing, within ten (10) calendar days from written notice of the termination, and/or has failed to request and receive approval from ADECA for extension of such, then the Subrecipient shall have no further right of appeal.
- (b) A hearing shall be conducted at ADECA's offices in Montgomery, Alabama, or any other appropriate location at ADECA's discretion, with a written notification of the time, place, and subject matter provided by ADECA to the Subrecipient.

3. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

In accordance with 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and Executive Order 11246 (as amended by Executive Order 11375), for any federally assisted construction contract as defined by 41 CFR 60-1.3, the contractor, during the performance of this Agreement, hereby agrees as follows:

(a) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- (b) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (c) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (d) The contractor will comply with all provisions of <u>Executive Order 11246</u> of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (e) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by **Executive Order 11246** of September 24.1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (f) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in
- part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in **Executive Order 11246** of September 24,1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in **Executive Order 11246** of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (g) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (a) and the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

The Subrecipient further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: **Provided,** that if the Subrecipient so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The Subrecipient agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The Subrecipient further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to **Executive Order 11246** of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from,

or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order.

In addition, the Subrecipient agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the Subrecipient under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such Subrecipient; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

4. COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT

For all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000, the Subrecipient or Contractor shall comply with the Copeland "Anti-kickback" Act, 40 U.S.C. 3145, as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3), which prohibits a Contractor or Subrecipient from inducing any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of a public work from giving up any compensation to which he or she is entitled to receive. In the event of a suspected or reported violation of the Copeland "Anti- Kickback" Act, ADECA shall report such violation to the Federal awarding agency [U.S. Department of Transportation].

5. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

In the event this contract or grant award is for an amount in excess of \$100,000 and involves the employment of mechanics and laborers, the Subrecipient or Contractor shall comply with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C. 3701-3708, specifically 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Said Act includes provisions which provide that a contractor must compute the wages of mechanics and laborers on the basis of a standard 40-hour work week. If an employee works in excess of 40 hours during a work week, the employee must be compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours. Further, neither a laborer nor a mechanic can be required to work in unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous conditions.

6. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT

If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR 401.2(a) and ADECA or the Subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment of performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," ADECA or the Subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the Federal awarding agency [U.S. Department of Transportation].

7. CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

In the event this contract or grant award is for an amount in excess of \$150,000, the Subrecipient or Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401-7671 q, and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251-1387. ADECA shall report any suspected or reported violation to the Federal awarding agency [U.S. Department of Transportation] and to the Environmental Protection Agency.

8. ENERGY CONSERVATION

The Subrecipient or Contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C. 6201 *et seq*.

9. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

- (a) The Subrecipient is prohibited from using any contractor or subcontractor or vendor that has been debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from participation in federal assistance programs (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689).
- (b) The Subrecipient shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the certification on Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-Procurement) for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection with such lower tier covered transactions (see 2 CFR Part 180.300). The Excluded Parties List System is available for access from the System of Award Management website at https://www.SAM.ciov.
- (c) The Subrecipient certifies, by entering into this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals, nor any of its subcontractors are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from entering into this Agreement or any contract or subcontract hereto related, by any federal agency or by ADECA and/or any department, agency, or political subdivision of the State. The term "principal" for purposes of this Agreement means an officer, director, owner, partner, key employee, or other person with primary management or supervisory responsibilities, or a person who has a critical influence on or substantive control over the operations of the Subrecipient.
- (d) The Subrecipient certifies that it has verified the suspension and debarment status for all subcontractors receiving funds under this Agreement, and that it shall be solely responsible for any recoupments or penalties that might arise from non-compliance. The Subrecipient shall immediately notify ADECA if any subcontractor becomes debarred or suspended, and shall, at ADECA's request, take all steps required by ADECA to terminate its contractual relationship with that subcontractor for work to be performed under this Agreement.

10. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING ACT

In the event this contract or grant award is for an amount equal to, or in excess of, \$100,000, the Subrecipient or Contractor shall comply with the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Act, 31 U.S.C. 1352, and shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-federal award (ADECA).

The Subrecipient will require that the language of the paragraph above be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements).

11. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

2 CFR 200.322 provides that a non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency at 40 CFR 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of completion, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000.00 or the value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000.00; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the Environmental Protection Agency guidelines.

K. OTHER APPLICABLE FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS

In addition to the above Sections, the Subrecipient agrees that the Subrecipient and its Contractors, Subcontractors, and Vendors shall agree with, and shall adhere to, the following:

1. TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Title X, Part C, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (20 U.S.C. 6083) prohibits smoking in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an entity used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, daycare, education, or library services to children under the age of 18 if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or through State or local governments by federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the provisions of Title V, Subtitle D of Public Law 100-690 or Public Law 111-350 (41 U.S.C. 8101 *et. seq.*), the "Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988," all grantees (to include ADECA, the Subrecipient, Contractors, Subcontractors and Vendors) must maintain a drug-free workplace and must publish a statement informing employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and establishing the actions that will be taken against employees violating these prohibitions. Failure to comply with these requirements may be cause for debarment.

3. TRANSPARENCY ACT

Awards under Federal programs are included under the provisions of Public Law 109- 282, the "Federal Funds Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006" ("FFATA"). Under this statute, the State is required to report information regarding executive compensation and all subgrants, contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$25,000 through the Federal Subaward Reporting System (https://www.fsrs.gov/) and in accordance with the terms found in Federal regulations at 2 CFR Part 170, including Appendix A. Therefore, the Subrecipient, Contractors, Subcontractors and Vendors who meet this threshold will be required to furnish this information to the ADECA Community and Economic Development Division which is funding the Subrecipient through this Agreement. Specific reporting processes will be provided by the applicable ADECA Division to the Subrecipient. Active enrollment in the System for Award Management is a condition of payment under Section F. herein this Agreement.

4. **POLITICAL ACTIVITY**

The Subrecipient shall comply with the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501, *et seq.*) regarding political activity by public employees or those paid with Federal funds. None of the funds, materials, property, or services contributed by the Subrecipient or ADECA under this Agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate in public office.

5. **HUMAN TRAFFICKING PROVISIONS**

The award is subject to the requirements of Section 106(g) of the "Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000" (22 U.S.C. 7104).

6. **PURCHASES OF AMERICAN-MADE EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS**

As stated in Section 507 of Public Law 103-333, it is the sense of Congress that to the extent practicable, all equipment and product purchases with funds from this Agreement should be American made.

7. MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.113, the Subrecipient must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to ADECA, all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations.

8. **NOT TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE STATE**

It is agreed that the terms, conditions, and commitments contained herein this Agreement shall not be constituted as a debt of the State of Alabama in violation of Article 11, Section 213 of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, as amended by Amendment No. 26.

9. **CONFLICTING PROVISION**

If any provision of this Agreement shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision or amendment, either now in effect or which may, during the course of this Agreement, be enacted, then that conflicting provision in this Agreement shall be deemed null and void.

10. IMMUNITY AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- (a) The parties to this Agreement recognize and acknowledge that ADECA is an instrumentality of the State of Alabama, and as such, is immune from suit pursuant to Article I, Section 14, Constitution of Alabama 1901. It is further acknowledged and agreed that none of the provisions and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be or construed to be a waiver by ADECA of such Constitutional Immunity. The Subrecipient's sole remedy for the settlement of any and all disputes arising under the terms of this Agreement shall be limited to the filing of a claim with the Board of Adjustment for the State of Alabama pursuant to §41-9-60 et seq, Code of Alabama 1975.
- (b) For any and all disputes arising under the terms of this Agreement, the parties hereto agree, in compliance with the recommendations of the Governor and Attorney General, when considering settlement of such disputes, to utilize appropriate forms of non-binding alternative dispute resolution including, but not limited to, mediation.

11. **DISCLAIMER**

- (a) ADECA specifically denies liability for any claim arising out of any act or omission by any person or agency receiving funds from ADECA whether by this Agreement, a contract, a grant, a loan, or by any other means.
- (b) No Subrecipient, Contractor, or agency performing services under any agreement, contract, grant, or any other understanding, oral or written, other than an actual employee of ADECA, shall be considered an agent or employee of the State of Alabama or ADECA or any Division thereof. The State of Alabama, ADECA, and their agents and employees assume no liability to any Subrecipient, Contractor or agency, or any third party, for any damages to property, both real and personal, or personal injuries, including death, arising out of or in anyway connected with the acts or omissions of any Subrecipient, Contractor, or agency, or any other person.

12. ACCESS TO RECORDS

The ADECA Director, the Comptroller General of the United States (if Federal funds), the Chief Examiner of Public Accounts, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to any pertinent books, documents, papers, and records of the Subrecipient for the purpose of making audits, financial reviews, examinations, excerpts and transcripts. This right also includes timely and reasonable access to the Subrecipient's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such agreement. This right of access is not limited to the required record retention period, but shall last as long as the applicable records are retained.

13. **ASSIGNABILITY**

The Subrecipient shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without the prior written consent of ADECA thereto. Provided, however, that claims for money due, or to become due to the Subrecipient from ADECA under this Agreement may be assigned to a bank, a trust company, or other financial institution through a valid court order and without such approval. Notice of such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to ADECA.

14. **CONTINGENCY CLAUSE**

(a) It is expressly understood and mutually agreed that any ADECA commitment of funds herein shall be contingent upon receipt and availability by ADECA of funds under the Recreational Trails Program for which this Agreement is made. If this Agreement involves Federal funds, the amount of this Agreement will be adjusted by the amount of any federal

recessions and/or deferrals.

(b) Payments made by ADECA under the terms of this Agreement shall not constitute final approval of documents submitted by the Subrecipient or of procedures used in formulating requests for payment to the Subrecipient.

15. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- (a) A conflict of interest, <u>real or apparent</u>, will arise when any of the following has a financial or other interest in the firm or organization selected for award: (i) the individual, (ii) any member of the individual's immediate family, (iii) the individual's partner, or (iv) an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the above.
- (b) The Subrecipient certifies by signing this Agreement that no person under the Subrecipient's employ or control who presently performs functions, duties, or responsibilities in connection with ADECA of grant-funded projects or programs has any personal and/or financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, nor will the Subrecipient hire any person having such conflicting interest.
- (c) The Subrecipient certifies that it will maintain a <u>written code</u> of standards governing the performance of persons engaged in the award and administration of contracts and subgrants.

16. **INDIRECT COST**

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.331 (a)(1)(xiii) and (a)(4), and 2 CFR 200.414, subrecipients of federal awards may charge indirect costs to the award unless statutorily prohibited by the federal program and in accordance with any applicable administrative caps on federal funding. ADECA will not negotiate indirect cost rates with subrecipients, but will accept a federally negotiated indirect cost rate or the 10% de minimis rate of the modified total direct cost (MTDC) as defined in 2 CFR 200.68. If requesting the 10% de minimis rate, subrecipients must submit a certification that the entity has never received a federally approved indirect cost rate. Subrecipients are allowed to allocate and charge direct costs through cost allocation. However, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.403, costs must be consistently charged as either indirect or direct costs but not charged as both or inconsistently charged to the federal award. Once chosen, the method must be used consistently for all federal awards until such time as a negotiated rate is approved by the subrecipients' federal cognizant agency.

17. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

- (a) All Subrecipients of federal funds must follow the Audit requirements identified in the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements. Additionally, if any Subrecipient receives more than \$500,000, collectively, in State General Fund appropriations in their fiscal year, from ADECA, they must have an audit in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* (the Yellow Book) and Generally Accepted Auditing Standards established by the AICPA.
- (b) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to mean that ADECA cannot utilize its auditors regarding limited scope audits of various ADECA funds. Audits of this nature shall be planned and carried out in such a way as to avoid duplication or not to exceed the audit coverage limits as stated in the said Uniform Administrative Requirements.
 - (c) Copies of all required audits must be submitted to:

Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs (ADECA) ATTENTION: Chief Audit Executive 401 Adams Avenue P.O. Box 5690 Montgomery, Alabama 36103-5690

And an additional copy to: Alabama Department of Examiners of Public Accounts ATTENTION: Audit Report Repository P. O. Box 302251

Montgomery, Alabama 36130-2251.

(d) All entities that have a single audit must submit the reporting package and data collection form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F §200.512.

18. AUDIT EXCEPTIONS / UNRESOLVED QUESTIONED COSTS / OUTSTANDING DEBTS

The Subrecipient certifies by signing this Agreement that it does not have any unresolved audit exceptions, unresolved questioned costs or finding of fiscal inadequacy as a result of project monitoring. It further certifies that no money is owed to any Division of ADECA or to the Federal government under any program where it has not arranged a repayment plan.

19. **SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS**

- (a) Payments under this Agreement may be suspended in the event that there is an outstanding audit exception under any program administered by any Division of ADECA, or in the event there is an amount owing to any Division of ADECA, or an amount owing to the Federal government under any program administered by any Division of ADECA that is not received in a reasonable and timely manner.
- (b) Should the Subrecipient incur an unresolved audit exception or have unresolved questioned costs or finding of fiscal inadequacy as a result of any project monitoring by any Division of ADECA, then ADECA shall not enter into any other contract, agreement, grant, etc., with the Subrecipient until the audit exception or questioned cost or finding of fiscal inadequacy has been resolved.
- (c) ADECA shall not enter into another contract, agreement, grant, etc., with any individual, agency, company, or government under any program administered by any Division of ADECA that has not arranged a repayment schedule.

20. **DISCLOSURE STATEMENT**

Unless otherwise exempt under §41-16-82, *Code of Alabama 1975,* a disclosure statement must be submitted to ADECA for any and all proposals, bids, contracts, or grant proposals in excess of \$5,000.00.

21. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS

- (a) In addition to the provisions provided herein, the Subrecipient shall be responsible for complying with any and all other applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of the Federal, State, and local governments, including, but not limited to, the Alabama Competitive Bid Law (§41-16-1 et seq, Code of Alabama 1975), the Alabama Public Works Law (§39-1-1 et seq, Code of Alabama 1975), any State permitting requirements, the Alabama Open Meetings Act (§36-25a-1 et seq, Code of Alabama 1975), and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act (§31-13-1, et seq, Code of Alabama 1975).
- (b) For all contracts governed by the Alabama Public Works Law (§ 39-1-1 et seq, Code of Alabama 1975) or the Alabama Competitive Bid Law (§ 41-16-1 et seq, Code of Alabama 1975), the following shall apply: In compliance with Act 2016-312, the contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and will not engage in, the boycott of a person or an entity based in or doing business with a jurisdiction with which this state can enjoy open trade.
- (c) By signing this Agreement, the parties affirm that for the duration of this Agreement they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in

breach of this Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom.

- (d) It is the purpose of ADECA to provide to the Subrecipient this Federal Assistance allocated under the Recreational Trails Program in order that the Subrecipient can provide certain work activities and administrative services described in the Subrecipient's ADECA-approved Application and herein this Agreement.
- (e) It shall be the responsibility of the Subrecipient to carry out the performance of the said work activities and administrative services and the terms of this Agreement in a satisfactory and proper manner in accordance with all Federal, State, and local laws.
- (f) It shall be the responsibility of the Subrecipient to see that all contracts or subcontracts for the said work activities and administrative services and the terms of this Agreement are executed and performed in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws.
- (g) The Subrecipient agrees that ADECA shall not be liable for the failure on the part of the Subrecipient and/or any Contractor, Subcontractor or Vendor, to perform the said work activities and administrative services and the terms of this Agreement in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.
- (h) The Subrecipient agrees that work on the project will begin within 180 days following the receipt of notification that funds have been approved. The Subrecipient must provide a written request for an extension for the 180 day period within the first 120 days following the notification that funds have been approved.
- (i) The Subrecipient agrees that it possesses legal authority to apply for the grant, and to finance and construct the proposed facilities. A resolution, motion, or similar action has been duly adopted or passed authorizing the filing of the Application, including ail understandings and assurances contained herein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the Chief Elected Official/Executive Director/President to act in connection with the Application and to provide such additional information as may be required.
- (j) The Subrecipient agrees that property acquired with RTP funds will remain open to the public for trail use in perpetuity. Should the property cease to be open to the public for trail use, the Subrecipient must repay the RTP share, at least eighty percent (80%), of the fair market value of the property at the time of the change in use.
- (k) The Subrecipient agrees that development projects located on an easement, on leased land, or on applicant owned property will remain open to the public for trail use for a minimum of twenty-five (25) years unless otherwise stated in the ADECA-approved Application.
- (I) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the terms of Title II and Title III, the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646), 94 Stat. 1894 (1970), and the applicable regulations and procedures implementing such Act for all real property acquisitions and where applicable shall assure that the Act has been complied with for property to be developed with assistance under this Agreement.
- (m) The Subrecipient agrees that Form FHWA-1273, "Required Contract Provisions, Federal-aid Construction Contracts (Attachment A), will be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts, and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements, and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract).
- (n) The Subrecipient agrees that facilities will be designed to comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (Public Law 90-480) and the U.S. Department of Transportation Section 504 Regulations (49 CFR Part 27).
- (o) The Subrecipient will provide for and maintain competent and adequate architectural/engineering supervision and inspection at the construction site to insure that the completed work conforms with the approved plans and specifications; that it will furnish progress

reports and such other information as ADECA may require.

- (p) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of: Executive Order 11988, relating to evaluation of flood hazards; Executive Order 11288, relating to the prevention, control, and abatement or water pollution; and Executive Order 11990 relating to the protection of wetlands.
- (q) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat. 975, approved December 31, 1976. Section 102(a) requires the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is available, as a condition for the receipt of any Federal financial assistance for construction or acquisition purposes, for use in any area that has been identified as an area having special flood hazards by the Flood Insurance Administration of the Federal Emergency Management Agency. The phrase "Federal financial assistance" includes any form of loan, grant, guaranty, insurance payment, rebate, subsidy, disaster assistance loan or grant, or any other form of direct or indirect Federal assistance.
- (r) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with "Minority Business Enterprises" and "Women's Business Enterprises" pursuant to Executive Orders 11625, 12138, and 12432 as follows:
 - (1) Place qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists.
 - (2) Assure that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources.
 - (3) Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority owned businesses, and women's business enterprises.
 - (4) Establish delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority owned business, and women's business enterprises.
 - (5) Notify ADECA's Office of Minority Business Enterprise of all procurement opportunities to include the purchase of supplies, equipment, construction, and/or services.
 - (6) Comply with applicable Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program which complies with the U.S. Department of Transportation's standards set forth in 49 CFR Part 26.
 - (7) Require prime contractors, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in (1) through (6).
- (s) Property Standards. The Subrecipient shall comply with Property Acquisition and Management Standards of 2 CFR Part 200.
- (t) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the following applicable regulations, policies, guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Federal funds for this federally funded project, including:
 - (1) 49 CFR Part 20, New Restrictions on Lobbying.
 - (2) FAR Clause 52.203-12, Paragraphs (a) and (b), Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions.
 - (3) 2 CFR Part 25, System for Award Management (<u>www.SAM.gov</u>) and Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS).
 - (4) 2 CFR Part 170, "Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation".
- (u) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under the Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15). (Contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$100,000).

- (v) Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to Inform Employees of Whistleblower Rights:
 - (1) The Subrecipient agrees this award and employees working on this financial assistance agreement will be subject to the whistleblower rights and remedies in the pilot program on Award Recipient employee whistleblower protections established at 41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239) and FAR 3.908.
 - (2) The Subrecipient shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712.
 - (3) The Subrecipient shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (3), in all subawards or subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold, 48 CFR 52.203-17 (as referenced in 48 CFR 3.908-9).

22. CIVIL RIGHTS ASSURANCE

- The Subrecipient certifies that, as a condition to receiving any Federal assistance (a) from the Department of the Transportation, it will comply with all Federal laws relating to nondiscrimination. These laws include, but are not limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (49 CFR 21), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (49 CFR 27), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap; the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 U.S.C. 621 et seq.); ADA Title II at 28 CFR 35; ADA Accessibility Guidelines at 28 CFR 36; Limited English Proficiency (E.0.13166) at 28 CFR 42.104(b)(2); ADA Amendments Act of 2008 (Public Law 110-325, 42 U.S.C. 12101); Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681); and applicable regulatory requirements to the end that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, handicap or age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity conducted by the applicant. THE SUBRECIPIENT HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this Agreement.
- (b) THIS ASSURANCE shall apply to all aspects of the applicant's operations including those parts that have not received or benefited from Federal financial assistance.
- (c) If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance extended to the Subrecipient by ADECA, this assurance shall obligate the Subrecipient, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this assurance shall obligate the Subrecipient for the period during which the Federal financial assistance is extended to it by ADECA.
- (d) THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property, discounts or other Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Subrecipient by ADECA, including installment payments after such date on account of applications for Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date.
- (e) The Subrecipient recognizes and agrees that such Federal financial assistance will be extended in reliance on the representations and agreements made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Subrecipient, its successors, transferees, assignees, and subrecipients and the person whose signature appears on the Agreement and who is authorized to sign on behalf of the Subrecipient.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Jason Black to award the following bid proposal to the lowest responsible bidder meeting specifications as follows:

Proposal No.	ltem	Awarded to	Amount
2633	Motor Oils Dec. 7, 2017 through Dec. 6, 2018	McPherson Company	\$4,840.87 (over all)

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner, aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Stanley Hill and seconded by Ben Harrison to approve the following subdivision:

Name	S/D Type	Approval Type	Lots	District	Location
Bobby Jackson Subdivision	Minor	Preliminary & Final	2	1	24326 & 24300 Holt Rd

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Stanley Hill, aye; Ben Harrison, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Jason Black, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Stanley Hill to remove the following equipment from inventory:

Department	ltem	Inventory #	Serial #
Sheriff's Dept.	Netgear ReadyNAS 1100	15236	000da2103ae5

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Stanley Hill and seconded by Steve Turner to suspend the Rules of Order to add approval of County depository to the agenda.

The Administrator called the roll. Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; Jason Black, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Stanley Hill to approve First National Bank as the County depository, per Code of Alabama 1975, Section 11-4-41.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Jason Black, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

Commissioner Hill: Reported that District 1 has been spot leveling asphalt on Dugger Road and Sardis Springs Road. He announced that December 15th is the last day of the grant funded scrape tire disposal program.

Commissioner Turner: Stated the box cover extensions are finished in District 2. They're ditching and doing normal pothole repairs. He gave an update on the East Limestone Road right-of-way widening project.

Commissioner Black: The litter crew in District 3 has been very busy picking up old televisions, and encouraged citizens to take it to the dump.

Commissioner Harrison: District 4 is finishing Belly Hill Drive and putting in two five foot culverts on Pope Road. He informed the Commission that he will be placing proposals for additional funding options for roads on the work session agenda.

Recessed at 10:13 a.m. until 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, December 13, 2017, at the Washington Street Courthouse Annex, 310 West Washington Street, Athens, AL.